ST. Lucie WEST
SERVICES DISTRICT

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
JANUARY 0, 2026
9:00 A.M.

Page 1



o0 w

AGENDA
ST. LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
January 6, 2026
9:00 a.m.
450 SW Utility Drive
Port St. Lucie, Florida 34986
CALL IN 1-800-743-4099 PARTICIPANT CODE 400494
Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call
Approval of Minutes
1. December 1, 2025, Workshop
2. December 2, 2025, Regular Board Meeting
Public Comment
District Attorney
DA 1-  Status Report/Updates
District Engineer
DE 1-  Status Report/Updates

DE 2 - Consider Work Authorization No. WA-7BN1-2407-SU Between the St. Lucie West Services
District and the New York Mets of Flushing, NY

District Manager
Action Items

DM 1- Consider Approval of the Proposal for the 4B Control Structure Weir Wall Replacement Project
DM 2 - Reserve CDD Incorporation Status Update

DM 3-  Other Items

Consent Agenda

CA1-  Monthly Report on Public Works

CA 2-  Monthly Report on Utilities Operations

CA 3-  Monthly Report on Capital Improvement Projects
CA 4-  Monthly Report on Billing and Customer Service
CA5-  Public Information Officer Monthly Report
CA6-  Financial Statements for November 2025

CA 7-  Transfer Funds for the R&R & UC Account
Supervisors’ Requests

Adjournment

Page 2



St. Lucie West Services District

Workshop Meeting
December 1, 2025, at 9:00 a.m.

(Please note: These minutes are not verbatim. A CD recording of the
Workshop Meeting is available on file.)

Board Members Present

Dominick Graci — Chairman — in-person
Gregg Ney — Vice Chairman — in-person
Jack Doughney — Secretary — in-person
Diane Haseltine — Supervisor — via phone
Kevin Dolan — Supervisor — in-person

Staff Present

Josh Miller, District Manager, St. Lucie West Services District (“SLWSD”) — in-person
TJ Bayer — Assistant Utilities Director, SLWSD — in-person

Andy Bomjardim — Public Information Officer, SLWSD - in-person

Maddie Maldonado — Director of Office Administration, SLWSD — in-person

Jason Pierman, Special District Services, Inc. (“SDS”) — in-person

Laura Archer, Recording Secretary, SDS — via phone

Stephanie Brown, SDS — in-person

Megan Bowden, SDS — in-person

Also present were Donna Rhoden of the City of Port St. Lucie; Chuck Henry of The
Reserve CDD; and District residents Deane Piekara and Marianne Doughney.

Guests Present (Sign-In Sheet Attached)

A. Call to Order
The Workshop Meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.
B. Pledge of Allegiance
C. Roll Call
It was noted that all 5 Supervisors were present.
D. Approval of Minutes
1. November 3, 2025, Workshop
2. November 4, 2025, Regular Board Meeting

There were no comments on either set of minutes.

St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Meeting Minutes of December 1, 2025 Page 1 of 7

Page 3



E. Public Comment
There was no public comment at this time.

F. District Attorney
DA 1 - Status Report/Updates

Mr. Miller presented the report and noted that it was standard. He indicated that Nate
Nason’s November 6, 2025, letter to The Reserve CDD’s attorney was not included
in the report. He noted that the letter advises The Reserve CDD of their failure to
comply with paragraph 9(b) of the Bulk Services Agreement by failing to provide St.
Lucie West Services District (SLWSD) with the annual five-year buildout schedule
required to be delivered to SLWSD on or before November 1%t of each year. The
correspondence acknowledges that while we are cognizant that the parties are
working together in order to proceed with the assimilation of water and sewer
services provided to property owners within The Reserve, SLWSD found it necessary
to place The Reserve on notice of the failure. Mr. Nason goes on to explain that the
information is necessary in order to allow SLWSD to plan for system renewal,
replacement and capital improvements required to service future demand both in The
Reserve and elsewhere in SLWSD’s service area.

A lengthy discussion ensued.

G. District Engineer
DE 1 - Status Report/Updates

Mr. Miller presented the report noting that it was the standard report. He also
advised of work progressing on the Mets’ Minor League Baseball Complex.

Discussion ensued regarding the lack of progress on several projects and possibly
going out for an RFQ for Engineering Services.

H. District Manager
Actions Items

DM 1 — Consider Change Order #1 from Hydro Designs for Construction
and Engineering Services for Injection Well #2

Mr. Miller presented the item and reminded the Board that Hydro Designs LLC had
been awarded the construction and engineering services for the Injection Well #2
Project on May 6, 2025, in the amount of $394,000.

Mr. Miller indicated that this change order was in the amount of $241,643.50,
increasing the contract to $635,643.50, due to project delays of 103 days, which
were caused by Youngquist Brothers, LLC, the construction contractor. Mr. Miller
noted that Youngquist Brothers, LLC, have agreed to a change to deduct their
contract to accommodate this change order.

St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Meeting Minutes of December 1, 2025 Page 2 of 7

Page 4



Mr. Miller pointed out that this change order will increase Hydro Designs’ contract
duration to the end of the Youngquist Brothers, LLC contract, which is February 15,
2026.

A brief discussion ensued.

DM 2 — Consider SCADA (Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition)
System Software Upgrade Proposals from Integration Services, Inc. (ISI)

Mr. Miller presented the item indicating that there were three proposals from ISl for
software procurement, configuration and testing for the entire utility plant process
systems and that, together, they make up one project.

Mr. Miller noted that ISI has been the District's SCADA Integrator since 1998, which
system is used for all the District’s controls and monitoring for water, sewer, irrigation
and stormwater systems. He further noted that these upgrades are necessary for the
Water Treatment Plant Redundancy Improvements Project and would be completed
in phases over a period of 9 to 12 months for a total amount of $106,189.

A brief discussion ensued regarding this item.

DM 3 — Consider Telemetry Hardware and Software Upgrade Proposal
from Integration Services, Inc. (ISI)

Mr. Miller presented the item indicating that it goes along with the previous item since
upgrading the SCADA system software will render the existing hardware no longer
supported.  Mr. Miller presented three proposals for hardware procurement,
installation, configuration and testing of all 74 remote SCADA locations and consist of
stormwater gates, irrigation pump stations, well sites and utility lift stations and is in
the total amount of $144,430 and will be funded by the General Fund R&R and the
Utility Fund R&R as follows: General Fund R&R in the amount of $27,324.49; and
the Utility Fund R&R in the amount of $117,105.41.

The Board was satisfied with the explanation for this agenda item and continued.

DM 4 — Consider Budget Amendment 2026-01 for the Utility Fund Carry-
Over Projects

Mr. Miller advised that this was standard procedure for projects that were funded in
FY 2025 and carried forward into FY 2026. He further noted that some of these
projects were encumbered in FY 2025 and some were budgeted but not encumbered
by the end of FY 2025 and need to carry the funding forward to FY 2026.

There was no discussion regarding this administrative item.

DM 5 — Consider Resolution No. 2025-08 — Annual District Goals and
Objectives Report

St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Meeting Minutes of December 1, 2025 Page 3 0of 7

Page 5



Mr. Miller presented Resolution No. 2025-08, entitled:
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-08

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ST
LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT ADOPTING AN ANNUAL
REPORT OF GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND STANDARDS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Mr. Miller explained that House Bill 7013 went into effect on July 1, 2024, mandating
that all districts establish goals and objectives for the district by creating performance
measures and standards to evaluate the district’'s achievement of those goals and
objectives. He furthered that the goals and objectives must be adopted by October
1, 2024, and then districts must rate themselves every year thereafter, beginning in
2025, and post the results on their website.

The Board Members had no questions regarding this item.
DM 6 — Reserve CDD Incorporation Status Update

Mr. Miller advised that design for the water connects was approximately 50%
completed with FDOT, USPS and FPL being advised of easements and the replat of
the water plant site was at the City of Port St. Lucie.

Mr. Miller advised that he had received the ERC Report from Mr. Fromm and Mr.
Miller had sent back some suggestions.

Mr. Henry noted that surveys were expected to be completed by mid-December and
RFPs for the lift stations (16 total) were due by December 18, 2025. Mr. Henry noted
that The Reserve CDD Board would most likely reconvene the December meeting
later into the month to respond to the RFPs. He believes the lift station project would
be awarded at either the January or February Board Meeting, after the engineer
ranks the responses.

The Board had several questions for Mr. Henry and Mr. Miller. After the discussion,
Mr. Henry left the meeting at approximately 9:17 a.m.

DM 7 — Auditor Selection Committee
e Ranking of Proposals/Consider Selection of an Auditor

Mr. Pierman reminded the Board that the Board had selected itself as the Audit
Selection Committee at the October 7, 2025, meeting, at which time they also
adopted the selection criteria and authorized staff to advertise for auditing services.
Mr. Pierman noted that 3 responses were received in response to the RFP for
Auditing Services as follows: Grau & Associates (the current auditor), James Moore
and Mcintosh CPA.

St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Meeting Minutes of December 1, 2025 Page 4 of 7

Page 6



The rankings were provided with Grau & Associates coming in first.
A brief discussion ensued.
DM 8 — Other Items

Mr. Miller presented a 5-Year Strategic Plan wherein he gave an overview of the
District currently and highlighted the management and operations structure,
summarizing the duties of the different departments. Mr. Miller also noted the
District’s vision, mission, core values and motto, by listing department goals and
focusing on the future of the community.

The Board was very happy with Mr. Millier's presentation and a lengthy discussion
ensued.

Mr. Miller advised that the District's new website would kick-off in 2 days. Mr,
Bomjardim then presented highlights of the new website, indicating that he first
focused on what the major complaints were regarding the current website.  Mr.
Bomjardim then determined what was necessary in order to make the website more
functional for customers such as easier access to important information,
transparency and gaining the public’s trust, education and community engagement,
reduced operational costs and improved accessibility and compliance.

The Board thanked Mr. Bomjardim for his work on the District website and thought
the presentation was excellent.

Mr. Miller advised that a salary survey was in the works, which would focus on
recruitment, employee development and retention. He noted one of the biggest
challenges was an aging workforce with the average employee being with the District
for 12 to 13 years. Discussion ensued.
That concluded Mr. Miller's updates.
l. Consent Agenda

CA 1 — Monthly Report on Public Works

CA 2 — Monthly Report on Utilities Operations

CA 3 — Monthly Report on Capital Improvement Projects

CA 4 — Monthly Report on Billing and Customer Service

CA 5 — Public Information Officer Monthly Report

CA 6 — Financial Statements for October 2025

St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Meeting Minutes of December 1, 2025 Page 5 of 7

Page 7



CA 7 — Consider Transfer of Funds for the UC Account for Fiscal Year
2025/2026

CA 8 — Surplus Items

Mr. Miller presented Consent Agenda Items CA 1 through CA 8 and asked if there
were any questions.

There were no questions or comments regarding the Consent Agenda items.
J. Supervisor Requests

Supervisor Haseltine expressed her pleasure with the items presented at today’s
Workshop.

Secretary Doughney noted that the new website justified the hiring of Mr. Bomjardim.

Supervisor Dolan praised Mr. Bomjardim for his work on the District's website and
today’s presentations.

Vice Chairman Ney noted he was happy with the new website and praised Mr.
Bomjardim for his work.

Chairman Graci pointed out Mr. Bomjardim and Mr. Miller, indicating that the Board
could not do this without them and the staff. He then reminded everyone of the
Annual Meeting on December 10, 2025 at 11:30 a.m.

Chairman Graci brought up a situation that occurred regarding an elderly neighbor of
his being notified by District staff of a “major leak.” Chairman Graci suggested
checking a couple of areas on his property and noted that if the leak was not at the
meter box, he would have to call a plumber. After some research, the neighbor
determined that the leak was coming from the meter box. The District was notified
and staff came out to repair it. Discussion ensued about District staff not being
permitted to go onto private property to find leaks. It is up to the resident to
determine where the leak is or call a plumber, which can be costly. Further
discussion ensued about possibly making arrangements with local contractors who
can come out to determine where leaks are for elderly persons who may not be able
bodied enough to find them. Chairman Graci noted they were seeing more leaks at
meter boxes and suggested that staff check the meter boxes before notifying a
resident of a leak.

That concluded Supervisor Requests.
K. Adjournment

There being no further items to be addressed, the Workshop Meeting was adjourned
at 10:26 a.m. There were no objections.

St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Meeting Minutes of December 1, 2025 Page 6 of 7

Page 8



Workshop Meeting Minutes Signature Page

Chairman/Vice Chairman Secretary/Assistant Secretary
Date Approved
St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Meeting Minutes of December 1, 2025 Page 7 of 7

Page 9



St. Lucie West Services District

Regular Board Meeting
December 2, 2025, at 9:00 a.m.

(Please note: These minutes are not verbatim. A CD recording of the Regular
Board Meeting is available on file.)

Board Members Present

Dominick Graci — Chairman — in-person
Gregg Ney — Vice Chairman — in-person
Jack Doughney — Secretary — in-person
Diane Haseltine — Supervisor — via phone
Kevin Dolan — Supervisor — in-person

Staff Present

Josh Miller, District Manager, St. Lucie West Services District (“SLWSD”) — in-person
Gerard Rouse, Public Works Director/Assistant District Manager, SLWSD — in-person
TJ Bayer — Assistant Utilities Director, SLWSD — in-person

Maddie Maldonado — Director of Office Administration, SLWSD — in-person
Lisa-Marie Beans, Human Resources Director, SLWSD - in-person

Searg Davidian, Assistant Public Works Director — SLWSD

Anderson “Andy” Bomjardim, Public Information Officer, SLWSD — in-person

Stephen Conteaguero, General Counsel, Nason, Yeager, Gerson, Harris & Fumero,
P.A. —via phone

Neako Villamil and Brian Stahl, District Engineer, HR Green — in-person

Jason Pierman, Secretary/Treasurer, Special District Services, Inc. (“SDS”) — via
phone

Laura Archer, Recording Secretary, SDS — in-person

Stephanie Brown, SDS — in-person

Also present were District residents, Deane Piekara and Marianne Doughney; and
retired school bus driver, Thomas Malaca.

Guests Present (Sign-In Sheet Attached)

A. Call to Order

Chairman Graci called the Regular Board Meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.
B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

It was noted that all 5 Members of the Board were present.

St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of December 2, 2025 Page 1 of 7

Page 10



D. Approval of Minutes
1. November 3, 2025, Workshop
2. November 4, 2025, Regular Board Meeting

A MOTION was made by Secretary Doughney, seconded by Supervisor Dolan and
passed unanimously, approving the minutes of the November 3, 2025, Workshop, as
presented, and the minutes of the November 4, 2025, Regular Board Meeting, as
presented.

E. Public Comment

Thomas Malaca, a retired school bus driver, approached and reminded the Board of
his request last month. Mr. Miller advised that the area had been graded and it would
be much easier for school buses to maneuver. Mr. Miller advised that the “No
Trespassing” was not being enforced for that area and he was working with the
commercial association on an interlocal agreement for maintenance of that area. Mr.
Malaca thanked Mr. Miller and the Board for their consideration.

F. District Attorney
DA 1 — Status Report/Updates

Mr. Conteaguero presented an updated report, dated November 14, 2025, which
included the November 6, 2025, notice of non-compliance to The Reserve CDD
regarding the 5-year build-out schedule. He also advised of a draft Interlocal
Agreement between the District and the City permitting the District to serve The
Reserve CDD customers directly. A brief discussion ensued.

G. District Engineer
DE 1 — Status Report/Updates

Mr. Villamil gave an overview of his monthly report and Mr. Stahl was present to
answer any questions. Mr. Miller indicated he was working with the engineering firm
to address his concerns.

H. District Manager
Action Items

DM 1 — Consider Change Order #1 from Hydro Designs for Construction
and Engineering Services for Injection Well #2

Mr. Miller presented the item and explained the situation.

A MOTION was made by Secretary Doughney, seconded by Supervisor Dolan and
passed unanimously approving Change Order #1 from Hydro Designs for
construction and engineering services for Injection Well #2 in the amount of
$241,643.50, changing the current contract not-to-exceed price from $394,000 to

St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of December 2, 2025 Page 2 of 7

Page 11




$635,643.50; the Available Project Budget being $26,005,664.50; This Project Cost
being $241,643.50; leaving an Available Balance of $25,764,021, as presented.

DM 2 — Consider SCADA (Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition)
System Software Upgrade Proposals from Integration Services, Inc. (ISI)

Mr. Miller presented the item and recommended approval.

A MOTION was made by Secretary Doughney, seconded by Vice Chairman Ney and
passed unanimously approving Integration Services, Inc. Proposals #2025-17A,
#2025-17B and #2025-17C in the not to exceed amount of $106,189 for the SCADA
System Software Upgrade for all District controls and monitoring for water, sewer,
irrigation and stormwater systems, as presented.

DM 3 — Consider Telemetry Hardware and Software Upgrade Proposal
from Integration Services, Inc. (ISI)

Mr. Miller presented the item and noted that it went hand-in-hand with the above item
and he recommended approval.

A MOTION was made by Secretary Doughney, seconded by Vice Chairman Ney
approving the Telemetry Hardware and Software Upgrades Proposal from Integration
Services, Inc. for hardware procurement, installation, configuration and testing of all
74 SCADA locations for the not to exceed amount of $144,430; this cost will be split
between the Utility Fund R&R and the General Fund R&R as follows:

Utility Fund R&R — Available Project Budget being $215,833; this Project Cost being
$117,105.41; leaving an Available Balance of $98,727.59; and

General Fund R&R — Available Project Budget being $97,464.68; this Project Cost
being $27,324.59; leaving an Available Balance of $70,140.09, as presented.

DM 4 — Consider Budget Amendment 2026-01 for the Utility Fund Carry-
Over Projects

Mr. Miller advised that this was standard procedure for projects that were funded in
FY 2025 and carried forward into FY 2026 and he recommended approval.

A MOTION was made by Secretary Doughney, seconded by Vice Chairman Ney and
passed unanimously approving Budget Amendment 2026-01 for the Utility Fund
Carry-Over Projects, as presented.

DM 5 — Consider Resolution No. 2025-08 — Annual District Goals and
Objectives Report

Mr. Miller presented Resolution No. 2025-08, entitled:

St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of December 2, 2025 Page 3 of 7

Page 12




RESOLUTION NO. 2025-08

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ST
LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT ADOPTING AN ANNUAL
REPORT OF GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND PERFORMANCE
MEASURES AND STANDARDS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

A MOTION was made by Vice Chairman Ney, seconded by Secretary Doughney and
passed unanimously adopting Resolution No. 2025-08, as presented.

DM 6 — Reserve CDD Incorporation Status Update
Mr. Miller advised of an e-mail update from Mr. Henry, as follows:

Reserve CDD Water Main/Force Main Interconnect Project

e Route survey completed:

o Level 1 SUE finished: We've completed Level 1 Subsurface Utility Engineering
using sounding and ground-penetrating radar. Note: This data is horizontal
only and doesn’t include vertical info yet.

« Preliminary design completed: The preliminary design is ready and has been
reviewed with Josh @ St. Lucie West Services District.

e Pending Level 2 SUE: We're waiting for the field crew to complete test holes
for utility conflicts to incorporate vertical info into the final design.

e FPL coordination initiated: We've reached out to FP&L to begin the easement
agreement process for crossing their transmission corridor west of interstate.

Reserve CDD Lift Station Upgrades & Bid Assistance
« Bid assistance: The project manual with technical specs was published as an
RFP. We've issued Addendum No. 1 to answer respondent questions.
o Lift station surveys: We're about halfway through fieldwork on the 16 lift
stations. All fieldwork and deliverables should be wrapped up by early
January.

Reserve CDD Water/Wastewater Plant Miscellaneous Support
o Phase 1 Environmental Study: Fieldwork is done; awaiting the seller’s
guestionnaire to finalize the report. | will circulate this, this week.
e Boundary survey: Fieldwork is complete; replatting is the next step.
« Pavement core samples: We’'re scheduling pavement core sampling for the
entrance driveway to ensure it meets city standards as part of the replatting.

The Board appreciated the update and a discussion ensued.

Chairman Graci then recessed the Regular Board Meeting and opened a meeting of
the Auditor Selection Committee.

DM 7 — Auditor Selection Committee

St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of December 2, 2025 Page 4 of 7

Page 13




e Ranking of Proposals/Consider Selection of an Auditor

Mr. Pierman explained that the RFP had been published in October and that we had
received 3 responses. He noted that the ranking was as follows:

#1 Grau & Associates
#2 Mclntosh
#3 James Moore

A brief discussion ensued regarding the ranking process.

A MOTION was made by Secretary Doughney, seconded by Supervisor Dolan
recommending Grau & Associates as the District's auditor. The MOTION carried
unanimously.

Chairman Graci then closed the meeting of the Auditor Selection Committee and
reconvened the Regular Board Meeting.

A MOTION was then made by Secretary Doughney, seconded by Supervisor Dolan
accepting the Auditor Selection Committee’s recommendation of ranking Grau &
Associates as the #1 proposer, selecting them as the District’s auditor; and directing
staff to enter into negotiations with Grau & Associates for the District's auditing
needs. Upon being put to a vote, the MOTION carried unanimously.

DM 8 — Other Items
Mr. Miller had no further updates.
l. Consent Agenda
CA 1 — Monthly Report on Public Works
CA 2 — Monthly Report on Utilities Operations
CA 3 — Monthly Report on Capital Improvement Projects
CA 4 — Monthly Report on Billing and Customer Service
CA 5 — Public Information Officer Monthly Report
CA 6 — Financial Statements for October 2025

CA 7 — Consider Transfer of Funds for the UC Account for Fiscal Year
2025/2026

CA 8 — Surplus Items

St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of December 2, 2025 Page 5 of 7

Page 14




Consent Agenda Items CA-1 through CA-8 were presented for Board consideration.

A MOTION was made by Secretary Doughney, seconded by Supervisor Dolan
approving Consent Agenda items CA 1 through CA 8, as presented. Upon being put
to a vote, the MOTION carried unanimously.

J. Supervisor Requests

Supervisor Haseltine had nothing further.

Supervisor Dolan wished everyone Happy Holidays.

Vice Chairman Ney congratulated everyone on the best hurricane season yet!

Secretary Doughney congratulated staff on an excellent Strategic Plan and new
website.

Chairman Graci echoed Secretary Doughney’s sentiments, thanked Mother Nature
for Vice Chairman Ney's comment on hurricane season and thought the
presentations were great. He reminded those present of the January Presidents’
Council meeting and suggested showing today’s presentations at that meeting.

That concluded Supervisor Requests.

K. Adjournment

There being no further items to be addressed, the Regular Board Meeting was
adjourned at 9:45 a.m. by Chairman Graci. There were no objections.

St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of December 2, 2025 Page 6 of 7

Page 15




Regular Board Meeting Minutes Signature Page

Chairman/Vice Chairman Secretary/Assistant Secretary

Date Approved

St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of December 2, 2025 Page 7 of 7

Page 16



St. Lucie West Services District

Board Agenda Item
Tuesday, January 6, 2026

ltem

DA1  Status Report/Updates

Summary

This report is provided for your review and information.

Recommendation

Budget Impact

Project Number: Available Project Budget: $0.00
ORG Number: This Project: $0.00

Available Balance: $0.00
Board Action

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken:

Page 17



OFFICE:

JOHN J. FUMERO (561)982-7114
g(j;lgd Cert;ﬁegl Stgte 8; FedLeral Government FAX NUMBER:
ministrative Practice Lawyer (561)982-7116
E-MAIL ADDRESS: CELL:
(561) 315-4595

jfumero@nasonyeager.com

January 6, 2025

St. Lucie West Services District
District Attorney's Report
Time Period November 19, 2025 — December 19, 2025

As SLWSD Counsel for the time period identified above, I and my team completed the
following matters:

Completed Work:

1)

Provided opinion to Gerard on accessibility of personnel files via the public

records process (all information not protected by HIPAA or state law must be disclosed).

2) Review of 401K plan agreement and reversion of redline to Alerus.
3) Completed Florida Commerce Registered Agent Form
Pending Work:
1) Review of 401K plan comments back from Alerus (received on 12/19/2025).
2) Review and revise District’s standard purchase order terms and conditions.
3) Fountain maintenance agreement for SLW Commercial Assn.
4) Reserve CDD- Joint Interlocal Agreements with SLC and City of PSL
Sincerely,

/s/ John J. Fumero

John J. Fumero, Esq.

For the firm

750 Park of Commerce Boulevard | Suite 210 | Boca Raton, Florida 33487
Telephone (561) 982-7114 | Facsimile (561) 982-7116 | www.nasonyeager.com

PALM BEACH GARDENS « BOCA RATON ¢« FT. LAUDERDALE « PALM BEACH

Page 18



St. Lucie West Services District

Board Agenda Item
Tuesday, January 6, 2026

ltem

DE1  Status Report/Updates

Summary

This report is provided for your review and information.

Recommendation

Budget Impact

Project Number: Available Project Budget: $0.00
ORG Number: This Project: $0.00

Available Balance: $0.00
Board Action

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken:

Page 19



MEMO

To: St. Lucie West Services District

From: HR Green

Subject: Monthly Project Status Report

Date of Status: December 19t 2025

1) General
i) SLWSD and HR Green have regular telecons and meeting discussions that are incorporated
in the project statuses below.
i) SLWSD to communicate with HR Green to provide direction and updates on IRSC and

Reserve CDD projects.

2) Stormwater Review

i) Status: ISS previously received requests for development reviews for the following:
a. Cashmere Starbucks
b. Mets MiLB Complex
i) Action
a. District Engineer Discussion / Consideration of Cashmere Starbucks Development
Plan - SLWSD Engineer to discuss approval procedures with Owner- Developer —
Agent.
b. Mets MiLB Complex - documentation has been submitted to the District for WA

Approval. All District criteria appears satisfied and application & fees have been
received at this time.

3) DIW Civil/Site and Piping Improvements

i) Status:
a.

ii) Actions:
a.

ISS submitted the Final Design Drawings for DIW-2/Civil Site Improvements on
November 17, This will allow the District to be begin self-performing the proposed
scope of improvements when necessary.

None

4) Water Treatment Plant Expansion Design Build Criteria Professional Services

i) Status:
a.
b.

ISS received Notice to Proceed on April 9, 2025
Project Kickoff meeting with SLWSD took place on June 24, 2025

Page 1

Page 20



i)

Actions:
a.
b.

ISS submitted a first draft of the design criteria on Sept 3 and received comments
from the District on Sept 11. ISS will be meeting with the District staff to review
their comments and develop a plan forward.

Project Team has reviewed SLWSD comments received Sept 11 of the first draft of
the design criteria. During this review, the Project Team identified additional data
and operational information from SLWSD.

The District has since provided additional input on November 13, 2025

Per email correspondence, the Water Treatment Pilot Study has been completed
and will be forwarded to HR Green as soon as the document is finalized.

ISS to contract and schedule site survey work.

ISS coordinating with HydroDesign to obtain their scope/fee for their support of the
new production groundwater well design.

ISS Team members have met and reviewed recently provided comments and input
and are incorporating accordingly. Results of the pilot study will be incorporated
once received. Note that it will take approximately four (4) weeks from receipt of
the pilot study results for a submittal package to be prepared.

5) WWTP Aeration Piping Replacement

i)

i)

Status:
a.

Actions:
a.

ISS received Notice To Proceed via signed TO on September 9t 2025.

ISS has prepared draft 60% Design Documents. We are internally reviewing,
including our structural group prior to submittal to the District. We are anticipating
submitting the 60% Design Documents Package no-later-than the first week of
January.

6) Control Structure 4B Weir Wall Replacement

i)

Status:
a.

Actions:
a.

ISS/Adams has submitted 60% Design Documents, including Drawings and Scope
of Work Memorandum to the District on November 11th, 2025.

District has reviewed and had minimal comments for incorporation into the Final
Design Documents.

ISS/Adams given confirmation to proceed with producing Final Design Package.
We are anticipating this package to be submitted to the District no-later-than the
first week of January. This will allow the District to contract this work and have
construction completed prior to the summer.

Through review of the District’s current Surface Water Management Policies and Procedures
Manual, it was determined that certain tables within the manual utilized an outdated datum.
Through discussions with Public Works, HR Green has provided the converted data to a
newer datum that is commonly used throughout the industry and by the District as a draft

Page 2

Page 21



document. This document will be finalized and incorporated into an amended District Manual
for District consideration and distribution.

i) The District has expressed the desire to revisit the Arcadis stormwater model and investigate
revising and updating the model based on completed projects throughout the District. Further
information will be provided after additional coordination with District staff.

8) At SLWSD'’s request, ISS is in the process of preparing the following District System Future Task Orders:
i) Update Utility Standards - Future
i) WTP Onsite Potable Storage Assessment - Future
iii) Concept Design & Cost Estimate for the WWTF Third Train - Future
iv) WWTF Grease Collection System - Future
V) SLWSD System Wide Irrigation Modeling (10 HOAs+) — Future
Vi) Easement Evaluation & Preparation — Near Future

Page 3

Page 22



St. Lucie West Services District

Board Agenda Item
Tuesday, January 6, 2025

Item

DE 2 Consider Work Authorization No. WA-7BN1-2407-SU Between the St. Lucie West
Services District and the New York Mets of Flushing, NY

Summary

This application is for the construction of an 6.01-acre MILB training facility located on Parcel
29A at site address 39 Piazza Drive, Port St. Lucie, FL. Legal descriptions for the plat is as
follows:

PARCEL ID NO. 3323-500-0011-000-6

The project site is in the District’s general use zone (see Exhibit A for site location). Parcel 29A
is currently being utilized as a sports facility

The applicant proposes constructing an MiLB clubhouse, agility field, and batting cages with
associated asphalt pavement and parking spaces, capable of providing up to 103 parking spaces.
The project site will utilize and connect to the existing utility lines adjacent to the parcel, including
sanitary sewer, water, and stormwater. Points of Service have been indicated on the plans
identifying where the District’s responsibility for maintenance terminates.

As the proposed development is not commercial/ industrial, pretreatment requirements established
in Section 4 of the SLWSD Surface Water Management Policies and Procedures Manual are not
applicable. This has been reviewed by both the District Engineer and the South Florida Water
Management District. Stormwater inlets and culverts collect and direct stormwater northeast to a
ponds/drainage on the northeastern side of the project.

Staff recommends approval of this Work Authorization with the following two special conditions:

1. All water, sewer, and reuse improvements past the points of service shown on the plans shall
be the responsibility of the applicant or subsequent owner.

2. All on-site drainage facilities including the proposed control structure shall remain in private
ownership and must be the maintenance responsibility of the applicant or subsequent owner.

Recommendation

District Manager: Joshua C. Miller
District Engineer: Neako Ramirez-Villamil
Public Works Director: Gerard Rouse

Board Action

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken:

Page 23



EXHIBIT A- LOCATION OF METS MILB CLUBHOUSE

Page 24



Proposed Area of MiLB
Clubhouse

12/1 /2025, 10 14 1 111.21
@o 460 20 , 40

L ! | |

I T I I
0 140 20 560

Page 25



WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. WA-7BN1-2407-SU

Between the

St. Lucie West Services District,
a Community Development District organized and existing in accordance with Chapter
190, Florida Statues and
New York Mets of Flushing, NY

SUMMARY OF SERVICES TO BE RENDERED

This application is for the construction of an 6.01-acre MILB training facility located
on Parcel 29A at site address 39 Piazza Drive, Port St. Lucie, FL. Legal descriptions
for the plat is as follows:

PARCEL ID NO. 3323-500-0011-000-6

The project site is in the District’'s general use zone (see Exhibit A for site location).
Parcel 29A is currently being utilized as a sports facility

The applicant proposes constructing an MILB clubhouse, agility field, and batting
cages with associated asphalt pavement and parking spaces, capable of providing
up to 103 parking spaces. The project site will utilize and connect to the existing
utility lines adjacent to the parcel, including sanitary sewer, water, and stormwater.
Points of Service have been indicated on the plans identifying where the District’s
responsibility for maintenance terminates.

As the proposed development is not commercial/ industrial, pretreatment
requirements established in Section 4 of the SLWSD Surface Water Management
Policies and Procedures Manual are not applicable. This has been reviewed by both
the District Engineer and the South Florida Water Management District. Stormwater
inlets and culverts collect and direct stormwater northeast to a ponds/drainage on
the northeastern side of the project.

Staff recommends approval of this Work Authorization with two special conditions as
stated in Paragraph D below.

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

All the required fees including $1,000.00 WA Application Fee, $500.00 Inspection
fee and $1000.00 of deposit were paid and collected during the review process.

PROJECT SCHEDULE: N/A

SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL.:

1 All water, sewer, and reuse improvements past the points of service shown on
the plans shall be the responsibility of the applicant or subsequent owner.

2. All drainage facilities shall remain in private ownership and shall be the
maintenance responsibility of the Applicant or subsequent owner.

1

Page 26



GENERAL CONDITIONS:

a)

In the event the ST. LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT wishes to obtain
ingress or egress to its easement and/or right-of-way for the purpose of
maintenance of District works, the removal and reinstallation of any construction
permitted hereunder shall be at owner's expense.

In undertaking any of the activities contemplated by this work authorization, the
applicant hereby agrees to comply with all federal, state, and local statutes, laws,
rules, and regulations governing such activities, including but not limited to water
quality standards for off-site discharges; and to abide by all terms and conditions
of any permit or other approval issued by any agency exercising regulatory
jurisdiction over such activities.

The applicant, by accepting of the work authorization, covenants and agrees that
the ST. LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT shall be promptly indemnified,
defended, protected, exonerated, and saved harmless by the applicant from and
against all expenses, liabilities, claims, demands and proceedings, including
reasonable attorney's fees in defense of such matters, incurred by or imposed on
said District in connection with any claim proceeding, demand, administrative
hearing, suit, appellate proceeding, or other activity, including unfounded or
"nuisance" claims, in which the District may become involved, or any settlement
thereof, arising out of any operations under this work authorization, including but
not limited to use of canal water for irrigation purposes; damage to landscaping;
paint damage to automobiles, buildings, or other structures; liability for charges,
fees, assessments, fines, and penalties levied by any agency exercising
regulatory jurisdiction over any of the activities contemplated by this work
authorization; and any property damage or personal injuries, fatal or not-fatal, of
any kind or character. The applicant further agrees that any such expense so
incurred by the District may be recovered by the District through offset against
any claim for reimbursement or other charge that the applicant may assert as
due from the District. If any expense so incurred by the District is not paid upon
demand and is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection by suit or
otherwise, the applicant hereby agrees to pay all costs of collection and litigation,
include, but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees.

By undertaking the construction allowed under this Work Authorization, the
Applicant agrees and understands that it is solely responsible for, and shall
indemnify and hold the District harmless from, (1) any and all restoration of
District owned or controlled properties and facilities required as a result of such
construction, and (2) any and all claims of third parties who currently have
facilities located in District owned or controlled property and which facilities are
damaged as a result of such construction.

Page 27



ST LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT

Joshua Miller Gerard Rouse

District Manager Public Works Director

Neako Ramirez-Villamil Dominick Graci, Chairman
District Engineer St. Lucie West Services District
7175 Murrell Road 450 SW Utility Drive
Melbourne, Florida 32940 Port St. Lucie, FL 34986

Certification that Sufficient Funds are Available, if applicable:

N/A N/A

District Treasurer Joshua Miller
District Manager

Dated this day of 2026.

Page 28



St. Lucie West Services District

Board Agenda Item
Tuesday, January 6, 2026

ltem

DM 1 Consider Approval of the Proposal for the 4B Control Structure Weir Wall
Replacement Project

Summary

Provided for your review and consideration are proposals for the replacement of the weir wall within the
4B control structure. This structure is located adjacent to the SLC Annex Bldg. on North Country Club
Drive. The project consists of the demolition and removal of the existing weir wall and the reconstruction
of a new weir wall.

Currently the existing weir wall is starting to experience holes and cracks which over time will
compromise the integrity of the concrete structure.

The proposals received are as follows:

E&W Mechanical Contracting — $122,572.00
Armadillo Dirt Works — $106,730.00
Southern Underground — DNB

This new construction could increase the life of this control structure for an additional 15 years.

Recommendation

Staff recommend approval of the proposal from Armadillo Dirt Works for the not to exceed
price of $106,730.00.

District Manager: Joshua Miller
Public Works Director: Gerard Rouse
Asst. Public Works Director: Searg Davidian

Budget Impact

Project Number: WMO001 Available Project Budget: $299,591.93
ORG Number: This Project: $106,730.00
Available Balance: $192,861.93

Board Action

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken:

Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



St. Lucie West Services District

Board Agenda Item
Tuesday, January 6, 2026

ltem

DM 2 Reserve CDD Incorporation Status Update

Summary

For your review is a Reserve CDD “RCDD” Utility Service Area Incorporation Schedule.

In early 2023, RCDD received a letter from SLWSD stating the Existing Bulk Services Agreement will
expire in November 2028. Since then, SLWSD and RCDD have been working together to incorporate
the RCDD water and sewer service area into SLWSD as retail customers.

This schedule has been created and shall be updated monthly moving forward.
Key Updates:

Water & Sewer Loop Interconnects Design is nearly 50%.

FDOT, City of PSL, and US Postal Service have been contacted relating to Easements
Reserve CDD is working with City of PSL to re-plat their water plant site

SLWSD and Reserve CDD drafting Interconnect Agreement with SLC and City of PSL
Reserve CDD Lift Stations Surveys

SLWSD submitted bid package to Reserve CDD for 16 Lift Stations Rehabilitation Project

Recommendation

District Manager:_Joshua C Miller

Board Action

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken:

Page 49



RESERVE CDD INCORPORATION PROJECT TOTAL DURATION= ONGOING 1

RCDD ENGINEERING FOR NEW INTERCONNECTS 12/6/2024 9/12/2025 280 Completed ﬁ
L4

wsp | TOPUTSMTONGALKTONSAND s s s compls
4

SLWSD DMEMAIL ;?\‘ ECREZIIJ) EESC:ZLI:ET)TLIJTEG URGENCY 10/14/2025 10/22/2025 8 Completed
L4

RCDD LIFT STATIONS SITE SURVEYS 11/11/2025 12/11/2025 30 Pending
L4

RCDD RFP LIFT STATION REHAB AWARD 12/9/2025 1/8/2026 30 Pending
4

RCDD UTILITY PLANT, SURVEY, RE-PLAT,SALE 12/9/2025 7/7/2026 210 Pending
4

SLWSD/RCDD NEW INTERCONNECTS AWARD AND INSTALL 2/1/2026 7/31/2026 180 Pending

4

RCDD RFP LIFT STATION REHAB WORK 2/1/2026 1/27/2027 360 Pending
L4

SLWSD/RCDD LEGAL/OPERATING TURNOVER PROCEDURES 6/1/2026 1/7/2027 220 Pending

L4

SLWSD OPERATING SERVICE AREA 11/1/2026 1/30/2027 90 Pending
L 4

RCDD PROVIDE CONCEPTUAL DESIGNS FOR SEPTIC 11/1/2026 1/30/2027 90 Pending
:

P |
RCDD ROVIDE FUNIT:\TSR;?/Z:A%E?SY REMAINING 1/1/2027 5/1/2027 120 Pending

‘ CRITICALPATH : NEW INTERCONNECTS MUST BE INSTALLED AND TESTED

Page 50



St. Lucie West Services District

Board Agenda Item
Tuesday, January 6, 2025
Item

DM 3 Other Items

Summary

Discussion/Update items:

Recommendation

District Manager: Joshua C Miller

Board Action

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken:

Page 51



St. Lucie West Services District

Board Agenda Item
Tuesday, January 6, 2026
Item

CA1 Public Works Monthly Reports

Summary

This report is provided for your review and information as an update to the operations of the Public
Works Department

Recommendation

Budget Impact

Project Number: Available Project Budget: $0.00
ORG Number: This Project: $0.00
Available Balance: $0.00

Board Action

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken:

Page 52



St. Lucie West Services District

Public Works Department
November 2025

Division Service Orders* | Work Orders**
Aquatics 40 3
Exotic Plant Removal 30 10
Storm Water 20 57
Vac Truck 4 0
Dredge Barge 0 0
Video Ray 13 0
Shop 94 0
Grand Total 201 70
Aquatics Division:
Operations & Maintenance:

Type Service Orders Work Orders
Algae 5 0
Injection Treatments 0 0
Hydrilla Treatments 6 0
Midge Fly Treatments 0 0
Harvester Removal 0 0
Surface Plant Treatments 8 0
Wetland & Upland Treatments 0 0
Debris Removal 7 0
Miscellaneous 14 3

Scheduled Maintenance

¢ Lake Cleaning Schedule - Available Upon Request

Exotic Plant Removal Division:
Operations & Maintenance:

Type Service Orders Work Orders
Encroaching Preserves 10 10
Lygodium Treatments 2 0
Exotic Vegetation Treatments 12 n/a
Tree Removals 0 0
Preserves Maintenance 0 n/a
Vine Management 2 0
Miscellaneous 4 n/a
Scheduled Maintenance

° None

Storm Water Division:
Operations & Maintenance:

Type Service Orders Work Orders
Locates n/a 57
Street Flooding 0 0
Grate Cleaning 2 0
Improved Landscaping & Mowing 3 n/a
Miscellaneous 15 0

Page 53




Storm Water Division Cont'd:
Scheduled Maintenance
¢ Right of Way Mowing done the first 2 weeks of each month.

Storm Water Division / Vac Truck:

Operations & Maintenance:

Type Service Orders Work Orders
Cleaning Out Pipes 1 n/a
Cleaning Out Structures 2 n/a
Miscellaneous 1 n/a

Scheduled Maintenance
e None

Other Information
o 300

0
* none

Storm Water Division / Dredge Barge:

Operations & Maintenance:

Estimated Footage Cleaned

Type Service Orders Work Orders
Dredging Pipes 0 n/a
Miscellaneous 0 n/a

Scheduled Maintenance
e None

Other Information
o 0

e None
e None

Storm Water Division / Video Ray:

Operations & Maintenance:

Estimated Yardage Cleaned

Type Service Orders Work Orders
Viewing Pipes 10 n/a
Miscellaneous 3 n/a
Scheduled Maintenance

e None

Shop Division :
Operations & Maintenance:

Type Service Orders Work Orders
Vehicle Repair 24 n/a
Equipment Repair 33 n/a
Other Repair 37 n/a
Total Repairs 94 n/a

Scheduled Maintenance
e None

* Service Orders are internally logged on an as needed basis by each department. No document is created.
** Work Orders are generated by office staff and distributed to the appropriate department. A physical

document is created and distributed.

Page 54




St. Lucie West Services District

Board Agenda Item
Tuesday, January 6, 2025

Item
CA 2  Monthly Report on Utilities Operations

Summary

This report is provided for your review and information as an update on the day-to-day Utilities
operations of the St. Lucie West Services District and will be provided once a month.

Page 55



St. Lucie West Services District Monthly Utilities Operations Report

Summary ERC Water/Wastewater Update
WATER
Commercial Accounts 526
Residential Accounts 6,284
Total Plant Capacity Based on 3.6 MGD 14,400.00 ERC's (Factor 250 gpd)
Water ERC's sold as of October 1st 12,346.00"
Current ERC (use) including the Reserve CDD 9,285.00° ERC's (MAX over 12 Months)
The Reserve Commitment for 2025 0.00 ERC's
Unsold Water ERC's as of October 1st 2,054.00
Sold in FY 2025 (see water table below) 10.60 ERC's
Total Unsold Capacity for Water 2,043.40
Total Unused Capacity for Water 5,104.40
WATER FEES
WATER RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL THE RESERVE COLLECTED
ERC's sold in_[Oct-25 0.0 10.6 ol $ 29,521.00
ERC's sold in_|Nov-25 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in_[Dec-25 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in_|Jan-26 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in_|Feb-26 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in_[Mar-26 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in_|Apr-26 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in_[May-26 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in_|Jun-26 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in_[Jul-26 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in_|Aug-26 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in | Sep-26 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
Total Water ERC's sold for FY 2026 0.0 10.6 ol $ 29,521.00
WASTEWATER
Commercial Accounts 472
Residential Accounts 6,283
Total Plant Capacity Based on 2.60 MG/TMADF 10'400'00‘ ERC's (Factor 250 gpd) TMADF
Wastewater ERC's sold as of October 1st 9,876.80
Current ERC (use) including the Reserve CDD 6,447.00 ERC's (MAX over 12 Months)
The Reserve Commitment for 2025 0.00 ERC's
Unsold Wastewater ERC as of October 1st 523.20
Sold in FY 2025 (see W.Water table below) 10.60 ERC's
Total Unsold Capacity for Wastewater 512.60
Total Unused Capacity for Wastewater 3,942.40
WASTEWATER FEES
WASTEWATER RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL THE RESERVE COLLECTED
ERC's sold in_[Oct-25 0.0 10.6 ol $ 23,850.00
ERC's sold in_[Nov-25 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in_|Dec-25 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in_|Jan-26 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in_|Feb-26 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in_|Mar-26 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in_|Apr-26 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in_| May-26 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in_|Jun-26 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in_|Jul-26 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in | Aug-26 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
ERC's sold in_[Sep-26 0.0 0.0 ol $ -
Total Wastewater ERC's sold for FY 2026 0.0 10.6 ol $ 23,850.00
New Connections in October: 10.60 ERC's

Page 56




St. Lucie West Services District Monthly Utilities Operations Report

November-25

Water Treatment Facility

Total Finished Water Produced for November was

The Finished Water Produced for the Previous Twelve Months was

The Average Daily Flow of Finished Water for November was

The Annual Average Daily Flow of Finished Water for November was

The Three Month Average Daily Flow of Finished Water for November was

The Water Treatment Plant Capacity is Operating at

The Water Plant Annual Withdrawal Capacity per SFWMD WUP is at

Water Treatment Plant Projects for September:
New Injection Well Construction Ongoing
Reserve CDD Service Area Incorporation Process Ongoing

Wastewater Treatment Facility

Total Influent Wastewater flow for November was

Total Effluent Wastewater flow for November was

The Average Daily Flow of Influent Wastewater for November was

The Average Daily Flow of Effluent Wastewater for November was

The Annual Average Daily Flow of Influent Treated for November was

The Three Month Average Daily Flow of Influent Treated for November was

The Wastewater Plant Capacity is Operating at

61.06 MG
718.89 MG
2.04 MG
1.97 MG
1.94 MG
56.5%
80.5%
41.85 MG
41.45 MG
1.40 MG
1.38 MG
1.48 MG
1.44 MG
55.5%

Wastewater Treatment Plant Projects for September:
Cleaned out Clarifier 1
Installed New Safety Eye Wash/Shower Chlorine Pump Room

Page 57




Remove Permanent Meter

Install Temporary Meter

Remove Temporary Meter

Lock off/non payment office

Lock off Return payment

Lock Off Temporary

Lock Off Non-Payment

Reconnection "No Fee"

Reconnection "Regular Hours"

Reconnection "After Hours"

NINW|O|R[R|[O|W|kR |k |O

Reconnection "Inspection"

[y
%2}

Check for Leak "No Leak Found"

[y
w

Check for Leak "Customers Responsibility"

[y
N

Check for Leak "Districts Responsibility"

Meter Reading Exception

Meter Maintenance

Read Meter pull Data Office Request

Meter Box

Follow up "Meter Swap"

Complaints "UGU Irrigation"

AMI Lock off Leak

Meter Change Out

Fire Hydrant

Irrigation "Checking for Leaks and Turning on Or Shutting Off Valves"

Sewer "Backups, Sewer Caps, or Breaks"

Lock off failed ARR

w|o|Ln|O[O|O||O|O|V|O|R|O

Read Meter Office Request

9}
w

Locates

w

Complaints "Water Quality, Pressure, etc..."

[y

Follow up "Incomplete Task by District or Contractor from Previous Service Orders"

o

Read Meter pull Data Customer Request

J
b)

ARNAl CAAdA L AAL

Page 58




IRRIGATION MONTHLY REPORT- NOVEMBER 2025
SERVICE ORDERS

S/O DESCRIPTION TOTAL

* CHECK FOR LEAK &
OPERATE VALVES

28

1Q FOLLOW UP (ANGEL)

ACREAGE MIEASUREMENT

COMIPLAINTS

TIMER CHANGE REQUEST

ADDITIONAL TIME REQUEST
NEW PLANTINGS

O [o||O|O

* Also reported un UGU MOR

IRRIGATION FLOWS

SOURCE TOTAL (MG) ADF (MG) MAX DAY (MG)
LK CHARLES 0.000 0.000 0.000
LK ERNIE 16.054 0.535 1.721
MAIN PUMP STATION 57.168 1.906 4.081
STORM WATER TRANSFER 18.137 0.605 2.123
SURFICIAL WELLS 1.657 0.055 0.229
BRACKISH WELLS 0.355 0.012 0.028
GOLF COURSE 5.723 0.191 0.286

FLOWS (CATEGORIZED)

TOTAL (MG) % MAX DAY (MG)
REUSE 41.452 54.80% 1.486
STORMW ATER 34.191 45.20%
WELLS (ALL) 2.012 2.66%
TOTAL 75.643 102.66%

Lake Charles Pump Station Removed

New Irrigation timer stickers have been ordered for all Magnolia Lakes.

Page 59




St. Lucie West Services District
Water & Wastewater Average Daily Flows

F —0Potable Finished
! Water Flow
0 Mo./Avg.
w
G
I a
nl
|
0
n.n —— Wastewater
rn Influent Flow
I's Mo./Avg.
|
i
0
n
Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25 Oct-25 Nov-25
St. Lucie West Services District
Water & Wastewater Monthly Total Flows
70.6 s 64.25 5226
59.97 -
6146 61.23 58.48 0.8
— 500 /‘\‘— 59.48
60.6 —— 56.84. 61,06
F 7 S \/ 55.88
[
° 4 Potable Finished
w 506 Water Total Flow
|
n 47.84 790
106 46.07 : 47.37 46.26 46.27 4aas 46.01
: 43.97 44.27 : 41.85
m 4396 41.60
i
[
306
! Influent Total Flow
i
°
n 206
G
a
| 106
[
o
" 06 T T T T T T T T T T T "
s Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25 Oct-25 Nov-25

Page 60




St Lucie West Services Distict
Water and Wastewater Percent Capacity

9%
10%
0%
Nov-24 Decd Jandd Feo-15 Mar-25 forD May-25 In-5 Wk fug5 S5 015 Nov-25
Nov-24 Decd Jandd Feo-15 Mar-25 forD May-25 In-5 Wk fug5 S5 015 Nov-25
R Percent Max M Water Capacty T3 T T 6% T8 T T 6% Th h 6% T T
Wastewater Percent Capacty fluent 60% 60% % 60% 60% % 5T 55 5h %% 5T 5T 5
Finshed Water Percent Capacty 5.5% 5.6 5% 5% 518% 578% 5% 528 5.4 536% SLT% 33 5%

Page 61



St. Lucie West Services District Monthly Rainfall

Q
o

20.00

18.00

16.00

14.00

12.00

10.00

8.00

6.00

4.00

2.00

0.00

Nov-25
Oct-25
Sep-25
Aug-25
Jul-25
Jun-25
May-25
Apr-25
Mar-25
Feb-25
Jan-25
Dec-24
Nov-24
Oct-24
Sep-24
Aug-24
Jul-24
Jun-24
May-24
Apr-24
Mar-24
Feb-24
Jan-24
Dec-23
Nov-23
Oct-23
Sep-23
Aug-23
Jul-23
Jun-23
May-23
Apr-23
Mar-23
Feb-23
Jan-23
Dec-22
Nov-22
Oct-22
Sep-22
Aug-22
Jul-22
Jun-22
May-22
Apr-22
Mar-22
Feb-22
Jan-22
Dec-21
Nov-21
Oct-21
Sep-21
Aug-21
Jul-21
Jun-21
May-21
Apr-21
Mar-21
Feb-21
Jan-21
Dec-20
Nov-20

Page 62



St. Lucie West Services District

Board Agenda Item
Tuesday, January 6, 2025
Item

CA 3  Monthly Report on Capital Improvement Projects

Summary

This report is provided for your review and information as an update on the Capital Improvement
Projects for the St. Lucie West Services District and will be provided once a month.

SW098 WTP Expansion Injection Well #2 Construction Ongoing
SW098 WTP Expansion Design Underway
SW099 Wastewater Emergency Storage Bypass in Design Phase

Page 63



PROJECT TRACKER - St Lucie West Services District

Approved | Encumbered / Onco
: Project | Project | Contractor/ | Capital Budget | Actual Costof |  Available neolng FY % : 3 3 3 8 3 ﬁ 8 3 g 0 ﬁ ﬁ
ProjectNo.| . % . Project 099 al0l0[el®]| a| N|0O|0
Engineer | Manager|  Vendor Funds Projectin | 2025 Budget ol Completion B t:l, §|a f N ‘: N g NN
in Dollars Dollars - E é 2 E ﬁ s“ f}g E _3‘ Eﬂ 5’,
Whoo1 GR 267460 267460 0% |Stormwater Emergency Repairs
SW001 JMITB 215833 32,500 183,333 15%  (Lift Station Renewal & Replacement
SW037 IMITB 250,000 45,000 205,000 18%  (Emergency Renewal and Replacement Projects
SWo47 IMITB 33,000 33,000 0% | Structural Repairs Manholes
SW048 IMITB 20,000 20,000 0%  [Security Camera Upgrades
SW049 IMITB 29,700 29,700 0% |Protective Coating Manholes
SW064 IMITB 55,000 6,500 48500 12%  Replacement Meters
SW066 JMITB 100,000 100,000 0%  [WWTF Painting & Sealing of Tanks
SWO78 IMITB 20,000 150,000 0 |WTP Paining & Sealing of Tanks
SW084 JMITB 5,000 5,000 0% |UGU Potable Water Flushing Devices
SW085 JMTB 16,538 16,538 0%  |Emergency (Assoc. Iir) R&R Projects
SWog7 JMTB 40,000 40000 0% |Imigation SCADA Conversion
SWo91 JMTB 5,000 5,000 0% | RR Water Flushing Devices
HR . o Design Crteria by
SW098 GREEN JMTB 26,000000 | 495,000 26 505,000 W WTP Expansion-Design/Build 506
HR . ' INJ WELL #2 Construction
SW098 GREEN JWITB | YOUNGQUIST | 10,000,000 | 8,500,000 1500000 - WTP Expansion-W 2 Construction Begen Competon by 22875
HR
SW099 GREEN IMITB 150,000 25,000 125,000 W Wastewater Emergency Storage Bypass
Total | $37207531| 9,104,000 28233531
TOTAL PROJECTS IN PROGRESS OR COMPLETE | 15[ 15
PROJECTS IN DESIGN PHASE 17
Available Budget Amounts Listed in RED are Over Budget PROJECTS IN BID PHASE 0 0
Available Budget Amounts Listed in Blue are At or Under Budget PROJECTS IN CONSTRUCTION PHASE ol o
PROJECTS COMPLETED 0 0
ONGOING CAPITAL R&R PROJECTS 8 8

Page 64




Major Project(s) Update

The schedules below are provided for your review and information as an update on the Capital Improvement Projects for the St. Lucie
West Services District and will be updated and provided once a month.

SW098 WTP EXPANSION-INJ WELL #2 | PROJECT TOTAL DURATION= ONGOING |

DESIGN AWARD/PURCHASE

SLWSD 308 Y103 2 Completed
ORDER ISSUANCE /30 A e
r
DESIGN ENGINEERING/FDEP
HYDRODESIGNS / gyNB 30 205 Completed
PERMIT APP SUBMITTAL
F
INJ WELL PERMIT ISSUANCE
FDEP Ul 10/15/2004 205 Completed
PROCEDURE
r
ACQUIRE FUNDING/BOND
SLWSD . / Yun 11700 25 Completed
ISSUANCE
r
SLWSD PROJECT BIDDING 108 312/2005 125 Completed
F
PROJECT AWARD/PURCHASE
SLWSD / YB 482005 7 Completed
ORDER ISSUANCE
F
DESIGN INJ WELL #2.SYSTEM
155 yyNB 10152005 19 Completed
CONNECTION
r
YOUNGQUIST | NEWWELLINSTAUATION  S/6/205  2/15/2026 25 Pending
r
HDRODESIGNs | \VELLTESTING/PERMIT 56005 2152026 2 Pending
CLOSEOUT i
155/T8D WELL #2 CONNECTION Y06 6/20/20%6 125 Pending

‘ CRITICALPATH: Must Encumber 5.0 % of Project Funds Within 6 months(Bond Requirement).

Page 65



SW098 WTP EXPANSION PROJECT TOTAL DURATION= ONGOING

155 WTP DESIGN CRITERIA 4/8/2025 2/2/2026 300 Pending

SLWSD DESIGN/BUILD BIDDING 2/2/2026 5/5/2026 9 Pending

PROJECT AWARD/PURCHASE
LWSD 202 202 2 Pendi
SLWS RIS ANGE 5/5/2026 6/3/2026 9 ending

CONTRACTOR/TBD NTP/MOBILIZATION 6/3/2026 7/3/2026 30 Pending
r

CONTRACTOR/TBD CONSTRUCTION 7/3/2026 5/29/2027 330 Pending
r

CONTRACTOR/TBD FINAL CLOSEQUT 4/5/2027 5/5/2027 30 Pending
4

IS5 PERMITTING CLOSEOUT 4/5/2027 5/5/2027 30 Pending
4

SLWSD OPERATIONALTESTING 4/5/2027 5/5/2027 30 Pending

Page 66



St. Lucie West Services District

Board Agenda Item
Tuesday January 6, 2026

ltem

CA 4 Monthly Reports on Billing and Customer Service

Summary

This report is provided for your review and information as an update on the monthly Billing and
Customer Service Operations.

The following are the totals from the accounts receivable reports.
1. Actual Consumption

Water 38,044,520  Gallons
Sewer 36,965,550  Gallons
Sewer BOD 0.00 Gallons
Sewer TSS 0.00 Gallons

2. Amount Billed

Total Water $351,707.39

Total Sewer $407,817.05

Total Irrigation $197,976.06
3. Billing

Total Water 6,808

Total Sewer 6,755

Total Irrigation 6,441

Page 67



CONSUMPTION BY GALLONS

Commercial:
Water 18,771,490
Sewer 18,097,970
Sewer- BOD 0.00
Sewer- TSS 0.00
Single:
Water 16,604,770
Sewer 16,599,320
Multi:
Water 2,668,260
Sewer 2,268,260
AMOUNT BILLED/TOTAL CHARGES:
Commercial:
Water $137,886.94
Sewer $152,335.51
1Q $56,186.62
TOTAL: $346,409.07
Single:
Water $179,410.85
Sewer $214,092.63
1Q $124,619.70
TOTAL: $518,123.18
Multi:
Water $34,409.60
Sewer $41,388.91
1Q $17,169.74
TOTAL: $92,968.25
TOTAL BILL COUNT
Commercial:
Water 526
Sewer 472
1Q 249
Single:
Water 5,176
Sewer 5,177
1Q 5,178
5,191
Multi:
Water 1,106
Sewer 1,106
1Q 1,014

Page 68

CONSUMPTION

Water 38,044,520
Sewer 36,965,550
Sewer- BOD 0.00
Sewer- TSS 0.00

AMOUNT BILLED

Water $351,707.39
Sewer $407,817.05
1Q $197,976.06
BILLS

Water 6,808
Sewer 6,755
1Q 6,441




Actual Consumption
October 2025

Residential Sewer
18,867,580

Commercial Water
18,771,490

Residential Water
19,273,030

Commercial Sewer TSS 0.00

Commercial Sewer BOD 0.00

Commercial Sewer
18,097,970

Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



St. Lucie West Services District

Board Agenda Item
Tuesday, January 6, 2026

Item
CA5  Public Information Officer Monthly Report

Summary

This report is provided for your review and information as an update on the public information of the St.
Lucie West Services District and will be provided once a month.

Page 75



St. Lucie West Services District Monthly Public Information Report

External Engagement & Media Relations:

1) (Community Relations) One Blood Drive
a. Hosted the Big Red Bus One Blood community blood drive on Nov. 7 in our SLWSD
Customer Service and Administration building parking lot.

2) (Government Affairs) County and City Public Board Meetings
a. Attended monthly St. Lucie County Board of County Commissioners and City of Port St.
Lucie Council meetings on behalf of SLWSD, to monitor matters affecting the district.

Internal & External Communications:

1) SLWSD November Newsletter - topics covered:
I. (Education Article) “Think Before You Flush: Only Toilet Paper Breaks Down
Properly.”
ii. (Notice) New SLWSD Customer Service & Administration hours of operations.
li. (Tutorial) “Take Charge of Your Water Usage. Register for Online Billing and Set
Up Automatic Alerts.”

2) New SLWSD Website Construction:

e \Website webmaster training — Conducted 5 hours of training with Granicus to administer
the new website and create content.

e Website editing — Completed the built of our new website (launched Dec. 3, 2025). The
new website features improved search tools, simpler navigation, digital utilities service
request applications, and full compliance with DOJ accessibility requirements. It also
supports future growth, allowing us to add more pages and enable online form
submissions, eliminating the need of residents and customers to print, fill and scan forms
to be sent to SLWSD for new accounts and similar requests by residents.

Page 76



3)

Email Marketing Analytics (mass email/text messages sent to residents through our
GovDelivery e-mail marketing platform)
CATEGORY | Title Date Sent Message Number of
Method People
Reached
PUBLIC NOTICE | SWSD Thanksgiving Nov. 19 Mass-email 5,089
Holiday Office Closure.
PUBLIC NOTICE | Donate a toy, at SLWSD, | Nov. 13 Mass-email 5,034
from Nov. 17 to Dec. 17. Support SLC Fire
District's Christmas4Kids Toy Drive.
NEWSLETTER | November 2025 Newsletter - | Nov. 10 Mass-email 5,117
Think before you flush: only toilet paper breaks
down properly.
PUBLIC NOTICE | Reminder: Property taxes | Nov. 6 Mass-email 5,029
are paid to St. Lucie County, not SLWSD.
PUBLIC NOTICE | Notice of New Hours of Nov. 5 Mass-email 5,096
Operation, Starting Dec. 1, 2025.
PUBLIC NOTICE | Blood Drive - Friday, Nov. | Nov. 4 Mass-email 5,040

7, 2025 - 8 am to Noon.

Page 77




St. Lucie West Services District

Board Agenda Item
Tuesday, January 6, 2026

ltem

CA®6 Financial Statements for November 30, 2025

Summary

Attached for your review are the Financial Reports for the period ending November 30, 2025.
« Financial Statements for all District Funds
 Check Register for General Fund and Water & Sewer Fund
o Summary of Checks over $35,000
« Balance Sheet Report for all Funds
« Bank Reconciliation Summary for all Depository Accounts

Recommendation

No Action Required.

Budget Impact

None.

Board Action

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken:

Page 78



St Lucie West Service District

Balance Sheet
As of November 30, 2025

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings

1072 - Bill.com Money Out Clearing
D-ACCNT
XXX
1-00001 - TRUIST (GF operating) #1363
1-00002 - TRUIST (GF R&R Fund) # 3968
5-00001 - TRUIST (WS Deposit) #1355
5-00002 - TRUIST (WS Operating) #7918

Total Checking/Savings

Other Current Assets
1-02000 - GF SLWSD GENERAL ASSETS

2-01000 - WB WTR MGMT BEN 1999A ASSETS
4-03000 - CP WMB CAP PROJECTS ASSETS
5-01000 - WS SLWSD WATER & SEWER ASSETS
Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Other Assets
000000 - Journal Entry Exchange

Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
20000 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
1-03000 - GF SLWSD GENERAL LIAB

5-02000 - WS SLWSD WATER & SEWER LIAB
Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Equity
1-01000 - GF SLWSD GENERAL FND BAL

2-03000 - WB WTR MGMT BEN 1999A FND BAL
3-03000 - CB CASCADES SRS 1998 FND BAL

32000 - Retained Earnings
4-02000 - CP WMB CAP PROJECTS FUND BAL

5-03000 - WS SLWSD WATER & SEWER FND BAL
Net Income
Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Page 79

Nov 30, 25

-15,081.44
-863.60

0.06
1,058,244.51
552,618.50
-5657,741.69

6,847,175.24

7,884,351.58

780,544.36
1,286,106.76
197,865.82
82,179,546.00

84,444,062.94

92,328,414.52

2,465.25
2,465.25

92,330,879.77

-881.12
-881.12

176,116.24

54,656,721.62

54,832,837.86

54,831,956.74

54,831,956.74

827,947.27
3,364,957.58
352,271.63

21,030,140.44
3,188,817.19

9,725,133.02
-990,344.10
37,498,923.03

92,330,879.77



26°C.€'6T- %722'09¢ GT'€9€'6ET 89'G56'98 €8'8T€'9¢¢ awoadu| 1eN
26°C.€'6T- %7.2°09¢ GT'€9E'6ET 89'G56'98 €8'8T€'9¢¢ awoou| Areuiplo 18N
88'88€'T9L'T %ET 8L 8v'1.8'C- 8Y'8CT'ET 00°.52'0T asuadx3 [e1oL
88'88€'T9L'T %ET 8L 8v'1.8'C- 8Y'8CT'ET 00°,52'0T SA V666T SUS N39 LWOW dLM dM - 00050-¢

asuadx3
96°'GTO'CV.L'T %8€'9€¢C L9 T6Y 9T 9T'¥80'00T €8'G/5'9g¢C awodu| ssoio
96°'GTO'CV.'T %8€'9€¢C L9'T6Y 9T 9T'¥80'00T €8'G/5'9g¢C awoduj [ejoL
000 %00 000 000 000 JNODNI 43HLO dINM SA - 000L0-¢
96°'GTO'CV.'T %8€'9€¢C L9 T6Y'9ET 9T'¥80'00T €8'G/5'9g¢C A3d V666T SHS NIg LINOW dLM dM - 000170-¢

awoou|

asuadx3/ewoou| Areulpio

196png [ejoL dLA 186png Jo % dlA196png -/+ ¢ dlA 19bpng G¢ NON - G¢ O

G20¢ 19qWISAON
[en1oy "SA 196png juswale)s awoou|

(Sa giM) 1013s1@ 821AIBS 1S3\ B10NT 1S

Page 80



00°000°'G %t 6GT G616V zeees 1282E'T
00°000'G %t 65T S6'v6Y zeees 1282E'T
000 %00 000 000 000
000 %00 000 000 000
00°000'G %t 65T S6'v6Y zeees 1282E'T
00°000'G %t 65T S6'v6Y zeees 1282E'T
000 %00 000 000 000
00°000°'G %t 65T S6'v6Y zeees 12°82E'T
196png feloL aLA 196png Jo 9 alA 196png -/+ $ alA 196png GZ AON - 52 190

5202 19qWaAON
[en1oy "SA 196png juswale)s awoou|

(dVO 9INM) 10111SIQ 921AISS 1S9\ 819N 1S

awoau| 18N
awoau| AreuiplQ 18N
asuadx3 [e10L
S3SN3IdX3 LO3r0dd 1VLIdVYO dINM 4O - 00090-7
asuadx3
aWodU| SS0I9
awodu| [ejo]
JINOODNI 43HLO dINM dD - 000207
JNNINTY SLO3r0dd dvO 9NM dO - 00070-1
awoou|

asuadx3/ewoou| Areulpio

Page 81



Income

5-04000 - WS SLWSD WATER & SEWER REVENUE

Total Income

Gross Income

Expense

5-05000 -
5-06000 -
5-07000 -
5-09000 -
5-11000 -
5-13000 -
5-14000 -
5-15000 -
5-16000 -
5-17000 -
5-18000 -
5-40000 -
5-19000 -
5-23000 -
5-26000 -
5-27000 -
5-28000 -
5-29000 -
5-30000 -
5-31000 -
5-32000 -
5-33000 -
5-41000 -

St Lucie West Service District (Water & Sewer Fund)

Income Statement Budget vs. Actual
November 2025

Ordinary Income/Expense

WS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

WS DISTRICT MANAGER

WS FINANCE

WS PROPERTY CONTROL

WS UTILITY RATE CONSULTANT

WS CLERK TO THE BOARD

WS ADMIN DVSN-PERSNL

WS WATER TRTMNT PLANT-PERSNL
WS WASTEWATER TRTMT PL-PERSNL
WS UNDERGROUND UTIL-PERSNL
WS IRRIGATION DIV-PERSNL

WS SHOP DIV - PERSNL

WS GENERAL COUNSEL

WS SPECIAL COUNSEL

WS ENGINEERING

WATER & SEWER DEBT SERVICE
WS WATER & SEWER SERVICES
WS ADMIN DIV-OPERATING

WS WATER TRTMNT PLANT-OPER
WS WASTEWATER TRTMT PL-OPER
WS UNDERGROUND UTIL-OPERATING
WS IRRIGATION DIV-OPERATING
WS SHOP DIV - OPER

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Net Income

$ +/- of % of Budget

Oct 25-Nov 25 Budget YTD Budget YTD YTD Total Budget
1,213,276.63 1,251,258.86 -37,982.23 96.96%  13,488,502.20
1,213,276.63 1,251,258.86 -37,982.23 96.96%  13,488,502.20
1,213,276.63 1,251,258.86 -37,982.23 96.96%  13,488,502.20
2,169.86 2,587.00 -417.14 83.88% 15,522.00
0.00 5,266.34 -5,266.34 0.0% 31,598.04
343,880.80 407,460.66 -63,579.86 84.4% 522,378.96
0.00 8,637.00 -8,637.00 0.0% 51,822.00
0.00 4,291.66 -4,291.66 0.0% 25,749.96
1,481.92 3,686.18 -2,204.26 40.2% 22,117.08
256,303.31 308,622.16 -52,318.85 83.05% 1,851,732.96
55,852.90 91,169.34 -35,316.44 61.26% 547,016.04
48,152.22 90,088.54 -41,936.32 53.45% 540,531.24
117,032.24 205,952.48 -88,920.24 56.83% 1,235,714.88
7,641.48 12,970.18 -5,328.70 58.92% 77,821.08
20,715.32 32,375.32 -11,660.00 63.99% 194,251.92
2,887.50 7,276.16 -4,388.66 39.68% 43,656.96
0.00 1,461.16 -1,461.16 0.0% 8,766.96
6,309.00 17,551.00 -11,242.00 35.95% 105,306.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 4,330,917.00
96,877.84 96,877.84 0.00 100.0% 581,267.04
94,179.86 134,585.18 -40,405.32 69.98% 782,511.08
118,644.73 239,304.32 -120,659.59 49.58% 1,185,825.92
71,860.47 156,232.82 -84,372.35 46.0% 937,396.92
133,204.75 314,241.98 -181,037.23 42.39% 935,451.88
11,398.13 60,364.52 -48,966.39 18.88% 362,187.12
7,851.21 33,641.32 -25,790.11 23.34% 64,347.92
1,396,443.54 2,234,643.16 -838,199.62 62.49%  14,453,890.96
-183,166.91 -983,384.30 800,217.39 18.63% -965,388.76
-183,166.91 -983,384.30 800,217.39 18.63% -965,388.76

Page 82



St Lucie West Service District (W&S Capital Outlay)
Income Statement Budget vs. Actual

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
5-36000 - WS CAP REVENUES
5-36001 - INTEREST - R&R
5-36002 - INTEREST - WWCF
5-36003 - INTEREST - BOND CONST
5-36004 - INTEREST - WCF
5-36005 - WATER IMPACT FEES
5-36006 - WW IMPACT FEES
5-36007 - R&R TRANS FROM W&S OPERATING
Total 5-36000 - WS CAP REVENUES
Total Income
Gross Income
Expense
5-37000 - WS RENEWAL & REPLACEMENT CIP
5-37004 - CAPITAL PROJECTS SW049
5-37006 - CAPITAL PROJECTS SW064
5-37007 - CAPITAL PROJECTS SWO001
5-37009 - CAPITAL PROJECTS SWO037
5-37013 - CAPITAL PROJECTS SW047
5-37020 - CAPITAL PROJECTS SWO066
5-37028 - CAPITAL PROJECTS SWO078
5-37031 - CAPITAL PROJECTS SW084
5-37032 - CAPITAL PROJECTS SWO085
5-37034 - CAPITAL PROJECTS SWO087
5-37038 - CAPITAL PROJECTS SW091
5-37042 - CAPITAL PROJECTS SWO095
5-37045 - CAPITAL PROJECTS SW048
Total 5-37000 - WS RENEWAL & REPLACEMENT CIP
5-38000 - WS WATER CONNECT FEE CIP
5-38015 - CAPITAL PROJECTS SWO098
Total 5-38000 - WS WATER CONNECT FEE CIP
5-39000 - WS WASTEWATER CONNECT FEE CIP
5-39010 - CAPITAL PROJECTS SWO067
Total 5-39000 - WS WASTEWATER CONNECT FEE CIP
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income

Net Income

November 2025

$ +/- Budget % of Budget
Oct 25-Nov 25 Budget YTD YTD YTD Total Budget

8,344.94

1,458.31 0.00

176,268.91 0.00

3,942.59 0.00

910.54 638.66 271.88 142.57% 3,831.96

726.54 479.32 247.22 151.58% 2,875.92

96,877.84 96,877.82 0.02 100.0% 581,266.92

288,529.67 97,995.80 190,533.87 294.43% 587,974.80

288,529.67 97,995.80 190,533.87 294.43% 587,974.80

288,529.67 97,995.80 190,533.87 294.43% 587,974.80

0.00 29,700.00 -29,700.00 0.0% 29,700.00

13,696.19 55,000.00 -41,303.81 24.9% 55,000.00

32,497.84 215,833.00 -183,335.16 15.06% 215,833.00

0.00 250,000.00 -250,000.00 0.0% 250,000.00

0.00 33,000.00 -33,000.00 0.0% 33,000.00

0.00 100,000.00 -100,000.00 0.0% 100,000.00

0.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.0% 20,000.00

0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0% 5,000.00

0.00 16,538.00 -16,538.00 0.0% 16,538.00

0.00 40,000.00 -40,000.00 0.0% 40,000.00

0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0% 5,000.00

0.00 260,000.00 -260,000.00 0.0% 260,000.00

0.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.0% 20,000.00

46,194.03 1,050,071.00  -1,003,876.97 4.4% 1,050,071.00

982,852.26 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

982,852.26 0.00 982,852.26 100.0% 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

1,029,046.29 1,050,071.00 -21,024.71 98.0% 1,050,071.00

-740,516.62 -952,075.20 211,558.58 77.78% -462,096.20

-740,516.62 -952,075.20 211,558.58 77.78% -462,096.20

Page 83



St Lucie West Service District

Check Register
As of November 30, 2025

Date Num Name Memo Credit
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings

1-00001 - TRUIST (GF operating) #1363
11/05/2025 13498 TRUIST CARD SERVICES 13,836.80
11/05/2025 13499 ELPEX TIRE INV#206286 434.84
11/05/2025 13500 Gannett Florida LocaliQ INV#7353459 213.68
11/05/2025 13501 INFRASTRUCTURE SOLUTION SERVICES INV#94614 8,263.50
11/05/2025 13502 MARINE WRAPS INV#12070 82.39
11/05/2025 13503 MIKE'S ORGANIC TOP SOIL 500.00
11/05/2025 13504 NAPA AUTO SUPPLY OF PORT ST. LUCIE ACCT#5508 12,130.65
11/05/2025 13505 PALMDALE OIL COMPANY, INC INV#SI-128779 986.46
11/05/2025 13506 ST LUCIE CO BALING & RECYCLING ACCT#396 1,982.90
11/05/2025 13507 VORTEX GRANULAR SYSTEMS, LLC INV#SP5102 56.05
11/05/2025 13508 WEX BANK INV#108301878 11,367.67
11/05/2025 13509 ATLANTIC PIPE SERVICES, LLC INV#25143 2,957.50
11/05/2025 13510 TRUIST CARD SERVICES M. MONTEROSSO OCT 2025 613.08
11/12/2025 ASCENSUS PR Check Date 11/12/25 (10/25/25-11/07/25) 457 2,133.70
11/13/2025 13511 AMERICAN PRESSURE SYSTEMS/PRESSUR... INV#9654 47.30
11/13/2025 13512 APPLE INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO. INV#53493 419.62
11/13/2025 13513 ATLANTIC PERSONNEL & TENANT SCREENI... INV#181470 860.10
11/13/2025 13514 ATLANTIC PIPE SERVICES, LLC INV#25435 7,374.07
11/13/2025 13515 E & W MECHANICAL CONTRACTING LLC INV#1090 20,020.00
11/13/2025 13516 FEDEX INV#9-063-16774 81.86
11/13/2025 13517 FPL 5685005356 48,373.18
11/13/2025 13518 FRANKLIN TEMPLETON BANK AND TR SEP PAYROLL 11.12.25 11,912.31
11/13/2025 13519 INTEGRATION SERVICES, INC. INV#12025-01-18 1,565.00
11/13/2025 13520 KYOCERA DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS SOUTH ... 387.04
11/13/2025 13521 LOWE'S ACCT#9900 682872 9 1,513.81
11/13/2025 13522 SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, LLC INV#160406559-001 551.90
11/13/2025 13523 SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL OF FLORIDA, I... INV#PS-INV1054495 70.38
11/13/2025 13524 SYSTEM DESIGN WIZARDS, INC. INV#110125-1 1,990.00
11/13/2025 13525 VERIZON WIRELESS 2,164.02
11/13/2025 13526 VERO CHEMICAL DISTRIBUTORS INC ACCT#STLUWE 27,556.74
11/13/2025 13527 CINTAS CORPORATION ACCT#25959046 PO#88026 969.60
11/13/2025 13528 CINTAS CORPORATION ACCT#25463850 PO#88021 596.33
11/13/2025 13529 CINTAS CORPORATION ACCT#25463850 PO#88020 558.56
11/13/2025 13530 CINTAS CORPORATION ACCT#25463850 PO#88018 558.56
11/13/2025 13532 CINTAS CORPORATION ACCT#25463850 PO#88019 547.80
11/13/2025 13531 CINTAS CORPORATION ACCT#25463850 PO#88017 544.59
11/13/2025 13533 CINTAS CORPORATION VOID: ACCT#25463850 PO#88016- duplicate
11/13/2025 13534 CINTAS CORPORATION ACCT#10627625 PO#88035 120.81
11/13/2025 13535 CINTAS CORPORATION ACCT#10627625 PO#88036 267.00
11/13/2025 13536 CINTAS CORPORATION ACCT#25463850 PO#88034 578.34
11/13/2025 13537 CINTAS CORPORATION ACCT#25463850 PO#88027 387.84
11/13/2025 13538 CINTAS CORPORATION ACCT#25463850 PO#88022 581.46
11/13/2025 13539 CINTAS CORPORATION ACCT#25463850 PO#88023 581.46
11/13/2025 13540 CINTAS CORPORATION ACCT#25463850 PO#88024 581.46
11/13/2025 13541 CINTAS CORPORATION ACCT#25463850 PO#88025 564.52
11/13/2025 13542 CINTAS CORPORATION ACCT#25463850 PO#88015 553.30
11/13/2025 13543 CINTAS CORPORATION ACCT#25463850 PO#88016 547.80
11/20/2025 13544 ADP, LLC INV#705501789 1,682.95
11/20/2025 13545 CINTAS CORPORATION 1,156.58
11/20/2025 13546 CITY OF PORT ST LUCIE STOMRWATER FY25/26 11,555.46
11/20/2025 13547 COMCAST ACCT#8535114930094251 FY2026 OCT 26, 2025-... 5,646.48
11/20/2025 13548 FLORIDA BLUE HEALTH INSURANCE-GROUP NO. 41965 DEC 2... 104,725.03
11/20/2025 13549 Gannett Florida LocaliQ INV#7405280 RFP for Annual Audit Services 158.80
11/20/2025 13550 GUARDIAN GROUP ID 00563384- DEC 2025 5,166.68
11/20/2025 13551 HELENA CHEMICAL CO 10,096.00
11/20/2025 13552 MIKE'S ORGANIC TOP SOIL INV#2025-1691 250.00
11/20/2025 13553 NASON YEAGER GERSON HARRIS & FUMER... STMT#335149 1,840.00
11/20/2025 13554 NEXAIR, LLC INV#0013856464 1,530.36
11/20/2025 13555 PITNEY BOWES-PURCHASE POWER INV#8000-9000-0280-5368 200.00
11/20/2025 13556 SAM'S CLUB MASTERCARD ACCT#5653 1,732.84
11/20/2025 13557 SUN LIFE PLAN NUMBER: 960974-0001 DEC 2025 3,689.73
11/20/2025 13558 TREASURE COAST MOWERS, LLC 719.54
11/20/2025 13559 UNIVERSAL ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, LLC  INV#IN0667399 135.00

Total 1-00001 - TRUIST (GF operating) #1363 339,271.43

Page 84



Date Num Name Memo Credit
1-00002 - TRUIST (GF R&R Fund) # 3968
Total 1-00002 - TRUIST (GF R&R Fund) # 3968
5-00002 - TRUIST (WS Operating) #7918
11/05/2025 14865 JOSE LISBOA WATER CONSERVATION REBATE FY2025-26 8 100.00
11/05/2025 14866 JOSEPH CLUROE WATER CONSERVATION REBATE FY2025-26 7 200.00
11/13/2025 14867 ALEXIS GARAFOLA CUSTOMER REFUND 620 SW LONG KEY CT 99.67
11/13/2025 14868 ANNE MAZZOCCHI CUSTOMER REFUND 429 SW JEFFERSON CIR 21.34
11/13/2025 14869 CHARLES MOLLICA CUSTOMER REFUND 798 SW MUNJACK CIR 4.02
11/13/2025 14870 EDWARD FORBES CUSTOMER REFUND 422 NW AQUA VISTA LN 40.74
11/13/2025 14871 ELENA MARIA DEL MORAL CUSTOMER REFUND 340 NW BREEZY POINT L... 10.78
11/13/2025 14872 SAMUEL GASPARD VOID: CUSTOMER REFUND 1327 NW ST LUCIE ...
11/13/2025 14873 MARIO B CASTRO WATER CONSERVATION REBATE FY2025-26 10 100.00
11/13/2025 14874 MOM AND POP DELI, LLC CUSTOMER REFUND 1012 SW ST LUCIE WEST ... 237.38
11/13/2025 14875 RNR PRESSURE CLEANING AND ROOF WAS... CUSTOMER REFUND 5 TEMP METER 844.00
11/13/2025 14876 ROBERT HASSE WATER CONSERVATION REBATE FY2025-26 6 200.00
11/13/2025 14877 ROSEMARIE DERISI CUSTOMER REFUND 328 NW SHORELINE CIR 21.70
11/13/2025 14878 SHARI JACKSON CUSTOMER REFUND 522 SW INDIAN KEY DR 30.39
11/13/2025 14879 TOP DOG INDUSTRIES, LLC CUSTOMER REFUND 12 NW TEMP METER 789.87
11/13/2025 14880 SAMUEL GASPARD CUSTOMER REFUND 1327 NW ST LUCIE WEST... 24.01
Total 5-00002 - TRUIST (WS Operating) #7918 2,723.90
Total Checking/Savings 341,995.33
Total Current Assets 341,995.33
TOTAL ASSETS 341,995.33

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Page 85



St Lucie West Service District

Checks Over $35,000
As of November 30, 2025

Date Num Name Memo Credit
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1-00001 - TRUIST (GF operating) #1363
11/13/2025 13517 FPL 5685005356 48,373.18
11/20/2025 13548 FLORIDA BLUE HEALTH INSURANCE-GROUP NO. 41965 DEC 2025 104,725.03
Total 1-00001 - TRUIST (GF operating) #1363 153,098.21
5-00002 - TRUIST (WS Operating) #7918
Total 5-00002 - TRUIST (WS Operating) #7918
Total Checking/Savings 153,098.21
Total Current Assets 153,098.21
TOTAL ASSETS 153,098.21

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Page 86



Page 87



St. Lucie West Services District

Board Agenda Item
Tuesday, January 6, 2026

ltem

CA 7  Consider Approval to Transfer Funds for the R&R Account and UC Account Requisitions
for Fiscal Year 2026

Summary

Attached for your review and approval is a request to transfer funds from the Utility Construction
Account (UC) for expenses that are previously budgeted project-related expenses for FY 2026 and have
been previously approved by the Board to be funded from one of the afore mentioned accounts.

All of the expenditures are appropriate for payment from the UC Account Requisitions. All
expenditures are in compliance with the District’s policy where the cost exceeds the capitalization
threshold for Fixed Assets.

e $46,194.03 — Renewal & Replacement Trust Account
e $908,302.26 — Utility Construction Account Fiscal Year
All Invoices for this requisition are attached for your review.

Recommendation

Staff recommends Board approval to transfer funds from the R&R Account for FY 2026
$46,194.03 and UC Account for FY 2026 $908,302.26 to the Public Fund Checking account for
reimbursement for payments made that have been budgeted to be funded by this account.

Budget Impact

None.

Board Action

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken:

Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Supervisors’ Requests

Page 95



Adjournment

Page 96



	St. Lucie West Services District - January 6, 2026 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Pledge of Allegiance
	Approval of Minutes
	December 1, 2025, Workshop
	December 2, 2025, Regular Board Meeting

	District Attorney
	DA 1 – Status Report/Updates

	District Engineer
	DE 1 – Status Report/Updates
	DE 2 – Consider Work Authorization No. WA-7BN1-2407-SU Between the St. Lucie West Services District and the New York Mets of Flushing, NY

	District Manager
	DM 1 – Consider Approval of the Proposal for the 4B Control Structure Weir Wall Replacement Project
	DM 2 – Reserve CDD Incorporation Status Update
	DM 3 – Other Items

	Consent Agenda
	CA 1 – Monthly Report on Public Works
	CA 2 – Monthly Report on Utilities Operations
	CA 3 – Monthly Report on Capital Improvement Projects
	CA 4 – Monthly Report on Billing and Customer Service
	CA 5 – Public Information Officer Monthly Report
	CA 6 – Financial Statements for November 2025
	CA 7 – Transfer Funds for the R&R & UC Account

	Supervisors’ Requests
	Adjournment




